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Applicant: Town of Acton Submissicn Date: November 14, 2005
Applicant's Address, Phone Number and Email Purpose: (Please select all that apply)
472 Main Street, Acton, MA 01720 O Open Space
Contact: Mary Ann Ashton, 978-263-4399 0 Community Housing
MABAshion@aol.com @ Historic Preservation
0 Recrealion
Town Committee (if applicable):
Project Name: Fitzgerald Piano Preservation
Proiject Location/Address:
Amount Re d: $17.000
Project Summary: In the space below, provide a brief summary of the project.

When the Acton High School cpened in September 1926, Honorable John Francis Fitzgerald, former
Congressman and mayor of Boston, presented a “baby grand” piano to the town of Acton. The gift, made
in memory of his wife’s parents, Acton residents Michael and Mary Ann Hannon, paid tribute to the town
that held so many fond memories for Fitzgerald and was intended to bring enjoyment to its citizens for
future years. This piano, unplayed and in disrepair for many years, needs a complete restoration and a
permanent home where it may be heard and admired by Acton’s citizens. The proposed project requests
funds from the Community Preservation Fund to restore the piano, and would embark on a private
fundraising campaign that would serve to collect funds for the ongoing upkeep and annual maintenance
of the piano. The private fundraising events anticipated would both draw attention to the public funding
as well as raise awareness of Acton’s rich history and is connection with regional historic figures and
events. The town of Acton will explore permanent locations for the piano, including the Acton Memorial
Library, and such a public location would offer Acton residents increased cultural programming in the form
of accasiconal piano concerts by our talented pool of local pianists.

Attachments:

Narrative, including answers o specific CPC guestions

Minutes, Acton Public Schoo! Committee, April 3, 2000

Undated newspaper article entitied, "Twas Acton Men Who Gave Their Blood, by the Rude Bridge That
Arched the Flood — Ex-Mayor John F. Fitzgerald.” Approximate date April 19, 1925

Undated newspaper article entitled, “Dedication of Acton High School.” Approximate date September 4,
19286.

Letter from Acton Board of Selectmen

Letter from Acton Historical Commission

1-2 months after funding becomes available

Estimated Date for Commencement of Project:

Estimated Date for Completion of Project: 5 months after funding becomes availlable

Town of ACton Prodiect Argdication Formn
YW Crammnunily Preservalion Flan
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Narrative

Background: In 1826 when the Acton High School opened its doors, the town of Acton received
numerous gifts fo furnish and equip the new high school, including a gift from Honorable John Francis
Fitzgeraid and his wife, Mary Josephine (“Josie”). John Fitzgerald (former Congressman and mayor of
Boston, father of Rose Fitzgerald Kennedy, and grandfather of President John Fitzgerald Kennedy and
Senator Ted Kennedy) presented the gift in memory of his wife’s parents, Michael and Mary Ann Hannon
of South Acton. The gift was emblematic of Mayor Fitzgerald's fond memories of trips to Acton as a boy,
coming from his home in the North End of Boston to rural Acton to visit with the Hannons. Mary Ann
Hannon was a first cousin of John's father, Thomas; upon first arriving in the United States, Thomas had
lived with the Hannons in Acton for several years. Throughout his life, John Fitzgerald kept a close
association with Acton. Town reports indicate that he served on the celebrations committee that planned
the 150" anniversary of the battle of Concord in 1925, and he spoke at the ceremonies at Town Hall on
that day about Acton’s role in the battle: “The little Massachusetts town of Acton has never got its just
dues for what it did on the 19™ of April 1775. The names of Lexington and Concord have been heard all
over the world — but Acton men brought them the fame.” When his son, Tom, was born on April 19, 1885,
he named his son Thomas Acton Fitzgerald.

The Ivers & Pond piano bears a plague inscribed as follows:

In memory of
Michael & Mary Hannon

THE ACTON HIGH SCHOOL
Froem
Mr. & Mrs. John F. Fitzgerald
1926

The piano, part of the Acton High School for many years, was moved to several locations following the
closing of the Acton High School and opening of the Acton-Boxborough Regional High School in 1955.
By the 1990s, it was housed in the cafetorium at the Douglas School, and had been in need of repair for
some time. The Douglas School principal, Lisette Kaplowitz, expressed concemns to the Acton School
Committee for the safety of the piano, as the school had become more crowded and there was no
adequate room to store the piano. In April 2000, at the request of the Douglas School principal and
Superintendent Isa Zimmerman, the Acton Schoo! Committee voted to transfer ownership of the piano to
the town of Acton, in hopes that a restoration could be accomplished and that a public and permanent
jocation could be found for the piano. Since 2000, the piano has been stored in the Vaillancourt building,
and there have been no funds available for the one-time restoration required.

Project Scope: Our request for Community Preservation Funds would provide for a complete restoration
of the piano, including mechanical parts and refinishing of the cabinet, while we seek a permanent home
for the piano. One possible location would be the Acton Memarial Library, which currently houses other
artifacts of Actor’s history. There is no other facility that routinely welcomes such a broad cross-section
of our residents, or that regularly opens its doors to our citizens onvarious days and times.  Its presence
would enable the library to offer weekly or monthiy piano concerts in the library on Sunday afternoons, for
example, a time when the library has a particularly retaxing and community atmosphers. Preliminary
research indicates that there are various Massachusetis libraries that offer such concerts, including our
neighbors in Sudbury whose Friends organization sponsors a series of programs entitled, “Bunday
Afiernoons @ the Goodnow” Whils the reques! is under revisw by the Trusiess of the Acion Memonal
Library, there has been no decision about the request. and we witl continue o sxplors other possible, A
coriginly less public, sites for the piano, inchiding the Faulkner Room {formerly Selectmen’s Hearing
Room) in Town Hall, or the Acton-Boxborough Regional High Schook.

Addifionally, private cilizens would undenigke 2 fundraising campaign W gamer et Bangds for
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include inviting author and Concord neighbor, Doris Kearns Goodwin, to come speak at a fundraising
dinner about the connection of the Fitzgeraid family with Acton. Ms. Goodwin has published numerous
books, including The Fitzgeralds and the Kennedys, which details many aspects of the families’ histories,
including a chapter devoted to John Fitzgerald's courtship of Josie Hannon and his association with
Actor. Such an event would not only raise funds, but would raise awareness and interest among Acton
residents in certain aspects of Actor’s history, including its rural history as well as a portrait of the town in
the late 19" century.

Costs of Project and Work Plan: Work would commence as soon as funds became available and the
project could be put out to bid. We requested that Bernie Toothaker of Apple Valley Piano Works inspect
the piano and provide assistance with what work is required and the range of costs. Mr. Toothaker has
tuned and maintained the pianos for the Acton/Acton-Boxborough Regional School District for several
years, and was able to request information from a number of piano restorers for the project. Mr.
Toothaker has indicated that the piano needs a full restoration which would cost approximately $15,000 to
$18,000 and approximately three months to complete. Once completed, he believes that the piano could
be maintained with semi-annual tuning indefinitely, and would look and sound like a new instrument.

Responses to CPC Questions:

The project wouid benefit the Town and citizens of Acton in several ways:

1. A treasure of great sentimental value to the town of Acton would be preserved for the enjoyment
of the citizens of the town.

2. Through public focus on the Fitzgerald piano and expected fundraising avenues, Acton citizens
would have an opportunity to learn about Acton’s rural history, the building of Acton’s own High
School, and the many generous gifts that contributed to the beginning of Acton’s High School, as
well as the connection with the Fitzgerald and Hannon families.

3. Once located in a public place of prominence, the piano could serve as a focal point of piano
concerts, thus enhancing the cultural offerings of the town and providing a venue for our talented
pool of local pianists.

4. Successful preservation of another historic artifact would serve as an impetus for other projects
that could be funded with a combination of public and private funds, and continue to enhance
Acton's citizens appreciation for Acton’s rich history.

The project is consistent with the Community Preservation Plan’s “Guidelines for Submission”
and “Review and Recommendation Criteria.”
Guidelines for Submission
1. The project was submitted using the Community Preservation Plan "Project Application Form.”
2. The project was submitted to the Planning Department as the CPC's agent by November 14,
20065,
3. The completion period is less than five years.
4. The Community Preservation Act (MGL 44B), the Acton CPA Bylaw (Chapter 5), and the
Community Preservation Plan have been reviewed.
5. A professional knowledgeable about project costs has been consuited.

Review and Recommendation Criteria

1. The project is consistent with the Town Community Preservation Plan, which specifically
mentions real properties of historic significance, and the need to “provide education and
community outreach regarding the extensive historical and cultural resources within Acton.”
The project is consistent with the Town 1998 Master Plan Update, specifically “FPreserve Acton's
higtoric and cultural resources ™ “Encowrsge the use of conservation areas and hislonc resources
for educational purposes” and “Encourage greater access for all residents to cultural events,
opporiunities and services” (pp. 41, 43).
The project s feasibls 1o implemant
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enhance the town’'s cultural offerings, thus providing another focus for gathering Acton’s citizens

together as a community.
5 The project intends to leverage private fundraising; the private fundraising would both draw

attention to the public funding piece as well as raising awareness of Acton's rich history and its
connection with regional historic figures and events.
8. The project would utiize, preserve, protect, and enhance a historic artifact owned by the town of

Acton.
7. The town of Acton has successfully implemented similar projects, and will work in collaboration

with the Acton Historical Commission as well as other individuals knowledgeable about the
historic and cultural aspects of the project.

Ownership of the piano is affirmed in the attached minutes from the Acton Public School Committee,
dated April 3, 2000.



ACTON SCHOOL COMMITTEE
Conference Room C April 3, 2000
High School 6:30 p.m.

Members Present: Mary Ann Ashton, Michael Coppolino, Pam Harting-Barrat, Jesse Liberty, -
Michael Scanlon

Also Present: Isa Zimmerman, Bill Ryan, George Frost, Nancy Kolb, Marie Altieri, Jo-Ann Berry

The meeting was called to order at 6:35 p.m. by Mary Ann Ashton, chair.
CHAIRPERSON'S INTRODUCTION
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - None

QLD BUSINESS

1. Stamski Study
Bill Ryan referred to the Stamski and McNary, Inc. report of October 1977 which evaluated the Arlington

Street property (27 acres), which is owned by the town, but designated for school use. The site was looked at,
potentially, for a new school, and found that it could support a sewage flow design of 4,216 gallons per day.
The Acton Board of Health concurred with the analysis.

Now, with the new buildings on the central campus replacing some of the current playing fields, there was
concern that new sites be found on which to construct playing fields for the schools and town athletic activities.
There was a suggestion from the Board of Selectmen that the schools might consider trading some of the
Arlington St. land for the newly acquired Robbins Mill iand.

After discussion, the Commitiee agreed that it was premature to make such a decision, and they would need to
see the High School feasibility /construction plans before any determination could be made. Then the playing
field situation on campus would be obvious.

Dr. Zimmerman supported this decision, noting that a decision to sell the school’s land next to the High School
(for a childrens’ day care center) had been short sighted.

Bill Ryan commented that we should be trying to acquire more land for the schools.

NEW BUSINESS
1. Gifting Piang to Acton Town Hall

It was moved, seconded and unanimously

VYOTED: That the baby grand piano, given to the Acton High School in 1925 by Mrs. and Mrs.

Michael Hannon (great-grandparents of John F. Kennedy), be given to the Town to Acton.
(It has been at the Douglas School for many years, and is in need of restoration. Because of
its historic significance, it was felt that if rightly belonged in the Town IHall }

NEXT MEETINGS: April 4, 6:30 pm, Jt. Exec. Session, High School
May 18, 7:30 pm, Merriam School

The meeting was adjourned at 6:55 pm. o o~
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TOWN OF ACTON
472 Main Street
Acton, Massachusetts, 01720
Telephone (978) 264-9612
Fax (978) 264-9630
E-Mail BOS@town.acton.ma.us

Peter K. Ashton, Chairman
Board of Selectmen

November 14, 2005

Mr. Matt Lundberg, Chair
Town of Acton Commumity Preservation Committee
cpc@acton-ma.gov

Dear Matt and Community Preservation Commitice members,

On behalf of the town of Acton, the Board of Selectmen is pleased to present a grant
application to the Community Preservation Committee to request funds to restore and
preserve the Fitzgerald piano. At our meeting on November I, 2005, the Board of
Selectmen voted to move forward with this proposal after reviewing the historical
background about the piano. We believe that restoring and finding a permanent home for
this piano, whether it is the Acton Memorial Library or some other venue, would provide
a significant opportunity to educate Acton’s citizens about another aspect of the rich
history of our town as well as expanding the cultural offerings through occasional piano
concerts.

The Acton Historical Commission has endorsed this application (letter attached), and

members of our board have heard from other individuals who are involved with
preservation and historic efforts in town that they support this application as well.

Sincere

Peter K. Ashton
Chairman



Acton Historical Commission

November 11, 2005

Mr. Matt Lundberg, Chair
Town of Acton Community Preservation Committee
cpc@acton-ma.gov

Re: Fitzgerald Piano Application- Letter of support

Dear Mr. Lundberg, and members of the Committee:

The Historical Commission would like to submit this letter in support of the Fitzgeraid Piano
Restoration application currently under review. The applicant has forwarded to us the historical
background and significance of this piano, and we think this application is an excellent use of CPC
funds.

We find the background of the piano quite interesting for its many facets; with its relation to the
opening of the Acton High School in 1925 (National Register eligible) as well as President John F.
Kenney, this is clearly a valuable cultural and historical resource that the Town should preserve
and honor for future generations.

The application further hopes to place the refurbished piano in the Memorial Library, a perfect

focation for such an artifact. If it could become the centerpiece for a future concert series, this
would reinforce its cultural impact on the town.

In short, the Commission is strongly supportive of this application.

Sincerely,

f’f@@@ﬁb
Batar Srover, Chair

Acton Historica! Commission
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